
 
 

 

TALENT CITY COUNCIL 

        REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

TOWN HALL  

March 16, 2016 – 6:45 P.M. 

 

 

 

Study Session, Regular Council & TURA meetings are being digitally recorded and will be available on the City website  

 
The City Council of the City of Talent will meet in a Regular Council session at 6:45 P.M on Wednesday, March 16th in the Town Hall, 206 E. 

Main Street.  The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-535-1566, 
ext. 1012. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other business deemed 

necessary at the time of the study session and/or meeting.  

   

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING- 6:45 PM 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms 
are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens 

Heard on Non-agenda Items” section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is 

discussed by the City Council. 

 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 

3. Mayor Announcements  

  

  3.1   

    

4.             Public Hearings  

Public hearings are conducted under a prescribed procedure depending on the topic. The presiding officer will conduct the hearing in 

accordance with those procedures which will allow for public input at the announced time. 

 

4.1 Smoking Ban in Talent Parks…………………………………………………………………………...Page 3-4 

 

5.            Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items  
Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion 

 

6. Public Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential future action items. Time limited to 15 minutes 

per presentation unless prior arrangements have been made. 

 

6.1   Pollinator Garden Dedication …………………………………………………………….(no agenda report) 

 

7. Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the 

consent agenda removed and considered separately on request.  

 

7.1 Approval of Regular Council Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2016……………………………….Page 5-37 

7.2 Acknowledge receipt of Payables……………………………………………………………………Page 38-41 

  7.3 Acknowledge receipt of Together for Talent Minutes for December 8, 2015 and  

January 5, 2016………………………………………………………………………………………Page 42-44 

  7.4 Acknowledge receipt of Parks Minutes for January 13 and February 10, 2016…………………Page 45-48 

 

8. Regular Agenda 

 

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given their report and if there is an applicant, after 
they have had the opportunity to speak. Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 

 

 

8.1 Endorsement to RVTD………………………………………………………………............(no agenda report) 

8.2 Tennis Court Funds………………………………………………………………………………………Page 49 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  



                   

9.   Information Items 

      

9.1  

  

 

10. City Manager & Other Department Reports  

Items for discussion by the City Manager and Department Heads as needed. 
 

11. Other Business 

 

  11.1   

    

12.    Mayor and Councilor - Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

 

Rogue Valley Area Commission on Transportation – Mayor Stricker (alternate)  

Together for Talent Committee – Councilor Collins 
Metropolitan Planning Organization – Mayor Stricker & Councilor Cooke (alternate) 

Planning Commission – Councilor Wise & Councilor Abshire (alternate) 

Public Art Advisory Committee – Councilor McManus   
Parks Commission – Mayor Stricker  

Traffic Safety & Transportation Commission – Councilor Cooke  

Rogue Valley Council of Governments – Councilor McManus & Mayor Stricker (alternate)  
Talent Historical Society –Councilor Abshire  

Harvest Festival Committee – Councilor McManus  

Economic Development - Councilor Pederson & Council McManus 

Chamber – Councilor Pederson 

Talent Charter Review – Councilor Cooke 
  

 

 

13. Adjournment   

 

The City of Talent is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

Note: This agenda and the entire agenda packet, including staff reports, referenced documents, resolutions and 
ordinances are posted on the City of Talent website (www.cityoftalent.org) in advance of each meeting. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-2900 for English and for Spanish please contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-3896.   

http://www.cityoftalent.org/


ORDINANCE NO. 16-917-O 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING SMOKING AND TOBACCO USE IN CITY PARKS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act regulates smoking in public places 
and in some outdoor areas to protect the public from the effects of secondhand smoke 
at work and in public; and 
 

WHEREAS, currently there is no restriction on smoking in city parks; and  
 
WHEREAS, the public regularly gather within the parks to enjoy entertainment or 

to recreate; and 
 

 WHEREAS, secondhand smoke and vapors infringe on the safety and welfare of 
others in the city parks; and   
 
 WHEREAS,  smoking products, once consumed in public spaces, are often 
discarded on the ground requiring additional maintenance expenses, diminishing the 
beauty of city parks and posing a health risk to children, pets and wildlife that may 
handle or ingest the debris; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to protect and promote public health, safety 
and welfare by providing smoke, vapor and tobacco free environments within City Parks 
and open spaces.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF TALENT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Definitions. 

“Electronic smoking device” (ESD) means any electronic product that delivers 
nicotine or any other substance to the person inhaling from the device, including 
but not limited to an electronic cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen or e-
hookah.  “Electronic smoking device” includes any component, part, or accessory 
of such a product, whether or not sold separately.  “Electronic smoking device” 
does not include drugs, devices, or combination products approved for sale by 
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as those terms are defined in the Federal 
Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

“Electronic smoking cartridges” or “electronic smoking device liquid” means the 
part or accessory to an electronic smoking device that is heated, atomized, 
vaporized or through some other process, using an ESD, becomes airborne to 
facilitate inhalation of the product or its byproducts. 

“Park” means:  
 

(a) any land owned or leased by the City of Talent and designated as a 
park by the City Council; 
 

(b) any City owned or managed parks and recreational facilities; and 

3



 
(c) all public parks, trails, open space, and special use areas, such as 

sport fields, tennis courts, basketball courts, picnic areas and 
swimming pools, including spectator areas and bleachers.” 

 
“Smoke” and “smoking” mean inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted 
or heated smoking instrument in any manner.  “Smoke” and “smoking” also 
include the use of an electronic smoking device which creates an aerosol, in any 
manner or in any form.  A lighted smoking instrument includes an activated or 
“switched on” electronic smoking device.  
 
“Smoking Instrument” means any cigar, cigarette, pipe, electronic smoking 
device, weed, plant, or other tobacco or tobacco-like product or substance in any 
form.  

 
Section 2.  Prohibition. 
 
No person may use or consume any tobacco or tobacco product, but not limited 
to tobacco, or smoke or carry any lighted smoking instrument, in any park, unless 
in a properly designated smoking area. 
 
Section 3.  Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect on the thirtieth day after its adoption. 
 
 

Duly enacted by the City Council in open session on ____________ by the 

following vote: 

           Ayes:       Nays:    Abstain:    Absent:    

 

__________________________________________________________________           

Melissa Huhtala, City Recorder and Custodian of City records 

 
 
 

4



 
 

 

TALENT CITY COUNCIL 

        REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING DRAFT MINUTES 

TOWN HALL  

March 2, 2016 – 6:45 P.M. 

 

 

 

Study Session, Regular Council & TURA meetings are being digitally recorded and will be available on the City website  

 
The City Council of the City of Talent will meet in a Regular Council session at 6:45 P.M on Wednesday, March 2nd in the Town Hall, 206 E. 

Main Street.  The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-535-1566, 
ext. 1012. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any other business deemed 

necessary at the time of the study session and/or meeting.  

   

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING- 6:45 PM 

Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City Recorder. Public Comment Forms 
are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens 

Heard on Non-agenda Items” section of the agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is 

discussed by the City Council. 

 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Members Present     Members Absent 

Mayor Stricker 

Councilor McManus  

Councilor Cooke 

Councilor Abshire 

Councilor Pederson 

Councilor Wise (arrived at 6:48 PM)  

Councilor Collins 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  

 

3. Mayor Announcements  

  

 Tomorrow there will be the Volunteer Celebration at the Community Center from 6-8 PM.   
    

4.             Public Hearings  

Public hearings are conducted under a prescribed procedure depending on the topic. The presiding officer will conduct the hearing in 
accordance with those procedures which will allow for public input at the announced time. 

 

4.1 None 

 

5.            Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items  
Limited to 5 minutes or less per Mayoral discretion 

 

6. Public Presentations 
Items that do not require immediate Council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential future action items. Time limited to 15 minutes 

per presentation unless prior arrangements have been made. 

 

6.1   Introduction – Curtis Whipple  

 

City Manager, Tom Corrigan introduced Curtis Whipple as the new Police Chief.   Mayor Stricker introduced City Council to Mr. Whipple. 
 

Mr. Whipple spoke he’s looking forward to working with the Citizens of Talent.  

 

6.2 Fire District 5 Annual Report – Darin Welburn 

 

Chief Welburn presented the Fire District 5 Annual Report (see attached). 

 

6.3 RVTD  

 

Tonia Moro and Tim D’Alessandro of RVTD spoke regarding funding for RVTD.  Ms. Moro requested the City to endorse RVTD along with 

Ashland and Phoenix in the amount of $133.33.  The total amount needed is $400 to get on the ballot. Ms. Moro will bring a proposal to Staff 

next week.   
 

 

Council discussed the RVTD routes.   
 5



Council gave unanimous consensus to endorse RVTD and gave consensus to endorse up to $200 if another City does not participate. Ms. Moro 

will get a statement to Staff.   
 

7. Consent Agenda 

The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single action. Any Councilor may have an item on the 
consent agenda removed and considered separately on request.  

 

7.1 Approval of Regular Council Meeting Minutes for February 17, 2016 

 

Councilor Pederson moved to approve the Council Minutes for February 17, 2016.  Councilor Cooke seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated 

the motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

7.2 Approve TURA Annual Report 

 

Councilor Wise moved to approve the TURA Annual Report.  Councilor Pederson seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  

Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

7.3 Appointment of Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) for the City’s Economic Opportunity Analysis. 

 

Community Development Director, Zac Moody gave a brief staff report.   

 

Mr. Moody spoke that Kathy Trautman and Josh LeBombard do not live in City limits and would like to remove from the (CAC) and put them on 
the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) instead.  He also handed out a new application from Joseph Wismann for the (CAC) (see attached).  

 

Councilor Pederson moved to approve appointment of Joseph Wismann to CAC.  Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated 

the motion.  Discussion: None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

Councilor Pederson moved to approve the appointment of Mike Davis, Charlie Hamilton, Bobby Townsend, Nancy Buono, John 

Harrison and Alexis McKenna to the Citizen Advisory Committee.  Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  

Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

It was discussed that TAC does not need to go through the application process but Mr. Moody will send the recommendations to Council.  

                     

8. Regular Agenda 

 

Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given their report and if there is an applicant, after 
they have had the opportunity to speak. Action items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 

 

8.1 Second Reading of Ordinance 16-914-O, An Ordinance providing for rules and regulations of public 

parks – defining and punishing certain offenses against the public general welfare. Repealing Ordinance 

72-286-O. 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a brief staff report.   

 

Councilor Collins moved to approve the Second Reading of Ordinance 16-914-O, An Ordinance providing for rules and regulations of 

public parks – defining and punishing certain offenses against the public general welfare. Repealing Ordinance 72-286-O.  Councilor 

McManus seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

8.2 Second Reading of Ordinance 16-915-O, an Ordinance establishing a program for the maintenance and 

operation of Talent city parks and imposing a surcharge for ongoing funding. Repealing  

Ordinance 05-795-O 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a brief staff report. 

 

Councilor Wise moved to approve the Second Reading of Ordinance 16-915-O, an Ordinance establishing a program for the 

maintenance and operation of Talent city parks and imposing a surcharge for ongoing funding. Repealing Ordinance 05-795-O.  

Councilor Pederson seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion. Discussion: None. All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

 

8.3 Second Reading of Ordinance 16-916-O, an Ordinance for the City of Talent’s flood damage prevention 

Ordinance and adoption of the most current versions of the flood insurance rate maps (FIRM) and flood 

insurance study. Repealing Ordinance 04-752-O 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a brief staff report.   
 

Councilor Cooke moved to approve the Second Reading of Ordinance 16-916-O, an Ordinance for the City of Talent’s flood damage 

prevention Ordinance and adoption of the most current versions of the flood insurance rate maps (FIRM) and flood insurance study. 

Repealing Ordinance 04-752-O.  Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  Discussion:  None.  All Ayes.  Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

 

8.4 Approve Phase 2 of the Water Park 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a staff report.  

 

Councilor Pederson moved to approve the reallocation of $10,000 from Parks Land Acquisition funds to the Splash Pad Phase 1 & 2 

within the Capital Improvement Fund.  Councilor Collins seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  Discussion: None.  As 

amended.  All Ayes.  Motion passed unanimously.   

             

Mayor Stricker suggested to move item 9.2 to 9.1. Council gave consensus to move the item.  

       6



9.   Information Items 

      

9.2 Together for Talent Committee Restructure and Economic Development Committee (no agenda report) 

 

Mayor Stricker gave a brief background.  
 

Councilor Collins gave a brief report (see attached).  
 
Sharon Anderson – 166 Autumn Ridge Court, Talent - Ms. Anderson spoke in support of the proposal to restructure the Committee.  

 

Mark Smith-1013 Lithia Way, Talent – Mr. Smith spoke that he is new to T4T and impressed with them.  He spoke in support of the restructure.  
 

Dorian Hastings – 100 N. Pacific HWY apt 73, Talent – Ms. Hastings spoke in support of the restructure and would like to get started ASAP.  

 
Mayor Stricker spoke in support of the restructure and explained the process. 

 

Councilor Collins moved to approve to restructure Together of Talent from Resolution to Ordinance to a recommending body.    

Councilor Cooke seconded.  Mayor Stricker repeated the motion.  Discussion: Councilor Pederson spoke in regards to voting on an 

information item.  It was explained that motions can be made at any time during a Council Meeting.  All Ayes.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  
 

Council decided to table the Economic Development Committee to a future meeting.   

 

9.1 Parks CIP Projects 

 

Mr. Corrigan gave a staff report (see attached). 

 

Mr. Corrigan spoke that he met with the City’s insurance company and was told that at a minimum the City should request a Discretionary Immunity 
insurance plan for the park (see attached).  He explained that the Tennis Courts have such large cracks that it would not qualify for Discretionary 

Immunity and would need to do some resurfacing before summer. Staff recommends to bring this back to Council to transfer funds.   

 
Councilor Pederson how long crack sealing would protect the Tennis Courts.  Public Works Director, Bret Marshall spoke that this would be a 

temporary solution and last 2-3 years.   

 
Councilor Collins spoke in concern about paying for this every 2-3 years.   

 

Council gave consensus for Staff to move forward with this and bring back the details to fix the Tennis Courts and the transfer of funds to the next 
Council Meeting.  Council gave consensus to put a Discretion Sign up at the Skate Park.  Council directed Staff to look at this again in a year and 

seek all other funding options for the Skate Park.  

 
 

10. City Manager & Other Department Reports  

Items for discussion by the City Manager and Department Heads as needed. 

Mr. Corrigan gave Department and City Reports: 

 Gave Council a copy of 2nd Quarter Budget Report (see attached).  

 Auditors were here last week all went well.   

 Upcoming franchise fee agreements will be coming to Council beginning with Charter and Pacific Power. 

 May 1st there will be a 5-10% Flood Insurance reduction for the City of Talent.   

 Council Goal Setting Meeting will be on March 9th. 

 Public Works is working on the ADA trail at Chuck Roberts Park it should be complete this week.  

 There will be a Rain Garden Workshop April 9th from 1:30-4 PM at the Community Center. 

 Staff is working on the Budget. 

 Staff is working on renewable energy and may have an intern to help.  This will go to the Budget Committee. 

 Weather permitting on Sunday there will filming for a movie in front of Town Hall. 

 The double convection oven is installed at the Community Center. 
 

11. Other Business 

 

  11.1  Councilor Abshire spoke that he has a list of items of what people would like to see in the Community.  He will 

be sending Council his list.  
 

Mayor Stricker spoke regarding rules for making motions in a Council Meeting she suggested for Council to read a handbook from the Secretary 

of State.    

    

12.    Mayor and Councilor - Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

 

Rogue Valley Area Commission on Transportation – Mayor Stricker (alternate)  

Together for Talent Committee – Councilor Collins 

Metropolitan Planning Organization – Mayor Stricker & Councilor Cooke (alternate) 
Planning Commission – Councilor Wise & Councilor Abshire (alternate) 

Public Art Advisory Committee – Councilor McManus   

Parks Commission – Mayor Stricker  
Traffic Safety & Transportation Commission – Councilor Cooke  

Rogue Valley Council of Governments – Councilor McManus & Mayor Stricker (alternate)  
Talent Historical Society –Councilor Abshire  

Harvest Festival Committee – Councilor McManus  

Economic Development - Councilor Pederson & Council McManus 
Chamber – Councilor Pederson 

Talent Charter Review – Councilor Cooke 

  7



Councilor McManus spoke that he missed the RVCOG meeting.  He spoke that he attended the SOREDI Business for Educators meeting and 

gave a brief update.  
 

Councilor Collins announced she attended Jackson soil and water conservation district dinner and gave brief update.  She went over the list of 

events coming up: 

March 5, 10-11:30am. Talent Public Library. Integrated pest management presentation. 

March 5, 19, and 26, 10am-2pm. Wagner Creek. Enhancement of the trail along Wagner Creek near SOS building. This work 

will be happening at the same time riparian restoration work is being done along Wagner Creek in the Old Bridge neighborhood.  

March 10, 6:30-8pm. Talent Town Hall. Rogue River Watershed Council is holding a meeting to discuss funding opportunities 

available to landowners in the Wagner Creek Watershed that will improve water quality and salmon habitat. 

April 9, 10-12 Little League Field. Arbor Day celebration.  

There will be tree planting, booths, music, refreshments, children’s activities, and tree seedlings for adoption. 

May 7 Recycle drop off  

June 25 Pollinator week celebration (location and time TBA).   
 

Councilor Abshire had no announcements.  

 
Mayor Stricker spoke that she attended the MPO Meeting and gave a brief update.  She spoke that legislation commissions were discussed.  

 

Councilor Pederson announced attended the Chamber Meeting.  He spoke that they have been having Grape Fair Meetings.  The event is 
scheduled for Sunday June 5th.    Met with Bobby Townsend to discuss Chamber action items to move forward with the business leader reception. 

The 2nd Friday will be at Kindred Spirits. 

 
Councilor Cooke announced she attended the TSTC Meeting and discussed signage at the Clearview Development.   

 

Mayor Stricker spoke that the time of the meeting was up and would entertain a motion to extend it 10 minutes.   There was no motion to 
continue.  

 

13. Adjournment   

 

The Council Meeting was adjourned at 9:30 PM 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

City Recorder, Melissa Huhtala 

 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

City Manager, Tom Corrigan 

 

The City of Talent is an Equal Opportunity Provider 

Note: This agenda and the entire agenda packet, including staff reports, referenced documents, resolutions and 
ordinances are posted on the City of Talent website (www.cityoftalent.org) in advance of each meeting. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-2900 for English and for Spanish please contact TTY phone number 1-800-735-3896.   

8

http://www.cityoftalent.org/


JACKSON COUNTY 

FIRE DISTRICT No. 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015  

ANNUAL OPERATIONS REPORT 

 

 

 

9



 

CONTENTS 

 

 

                        MISSION/VISION/VALUES ……………………………… 3 

 

CHIEF’S REPORT ………………………………………… 4 

 

STATION INFORMATION ………………………………. 5 

 

STATISTICS ……………………………………………….. 6 

 

EQUIPMENT PURCHASES ……………………………… 7 

 

PREVENTION/COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES …………… 8 

 

OTHER EVENTS …………………………………...……… 9 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



JACKSON COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 5 
 

MISSION 
 

To Provide Customer-Centered Fire & Emergency Medical  

Services that Save Lives and Property 

 

 

VISION 
 

To Consistently Provide Outstanding Service that  

Exceeds our Customers’ Expectations 
 

 

VALUES 
 

 Customer Service 
We understand our fire district exists because of the people we serve. We value and empower our 

firefighters, allowing us to deliver outstanding customer service. 

 

 Professionalism 
We value and respect the fire service and are honored to serve. We aspire to learn more, do more, 

and be more. We value passion for the job. 

 

 Attitude & Effort 
We believe a positive attitude is contagious and improves outcomes. Lead by example and give 

maximum effort. 

 

 Teamwork 
Be a good teammate and take care of each other. Together everyone achieves more. 

 

 Honesty & Integrity 
Do the right thing for the right reason, even when no one is looking. Be open, honest and 

trustworthy. 

 

 

 

 

11



CHIEF’S REPORT 
Jackson County Fire District 5 is pleased to present our annual report for 2015.  This 
report is an overview of our activities and accomplishments during the past year.   
 
In 2015 the district responded to 2,546 calls for service. This was approximately a 
10% increase over the previous year.  A majority of the increase was due to medical 
related alarms for service throughout the District.  Two days stood out with high call 
volumes.  On Tuesday, July 7, a powerful storm rolled into the valley with high winds 
toppling trees and snapping power lines.  We responded to 23 calls for service with 
18 of those coming in a two hour period.  On October 31 we had multiple open burns 
escape control due to high winds.   We ended up with our largest loss of acreage for 
the year due to wild fires.  When the smoke settled we had responded to 14 calls for 
service.  We had a 55 acre fire on Highway 66, 10 acres on Dark Hollow Road, 3 acres 
on Adams Road, and 2 acres on Houston Road.  All of these fires started as open burns and high winds caused them 
to get out of control.  Homeowners are reminded they are responsible for maintaining control of their burn pile.  
 
This year saw the most personnel changes in the history of our organization.  I was officially promoted to the Fire 
Chiefs position in March of 2015.  During that same month our Office Manager retired and we were very fortunate 
to hire Doug and Melinda Spani to fill this vacancy.  Melinda had previously managed our office and Doug had 
recently retired from the Phoenix Talent School District where he was the Business Manager.   The position is now 
job shared between them both.  In April we promoted Captain Vince Lockett to the position of Deputy Chief.  Vince 
has been with the District since 1996.   In June we hired Tina George as our part-time receptionist at the front 
counter.  She is our point of contact with the public and I am sure many of you have had the opportunity to speak 
with her.  Captain Larry Decker retired in June after 25 years with the Fire District.  We wish him the best in 
retirement.  We hired three new firefighter / paramedics over the first 6 months of the year.  These positions were 
to fill those vacancies left from promotions and retirements.  In January we hired Curt Ulrich.  Curt had previously 
worked in the private sector and was involved in our student firefighter program.  On April 15 we hired Dan Hall.  
Dan had been a previous volunteer with us and was working in Klamath Falls at Kingsley Field Fire Department.  On 
June 1, we hired Andy Buckingham.  Andy’s background was as a river guide and he too had been through our 
student Firefighter Program.  In addition to the new hires, we promoted the following individuals:  Brian Weidman 
from Engineer to Captain in April; John McEvoy from Engineer to Captain in June; Jimmy Johnson from Firefighter 
to Engineer in April; Jon Gavin from Firefighter to Engineer in June.  
 
Our 2015/16 budget numbers appear to be right on prediction based on the numbers from the assessor’s office.  
We projected a 3% growth for this year and it looks like we are on track for that amount.  Through the budget 
process we set aside $35,000 to upgrade our auto extrication equipment.  That purchase was completed in 
November enabling crews to better access patients that are entrapped as a result of motor vehicle collisions.    
 
The career and volunteer personnel that make up our response crews are very dedicated to providing the highest 
level of fire and ems response to our community.  We train daily to be prepared for emergency response and 
appreciate the support that our customers have shown.   
 
Our Board of Directors welcomed Mike LaNier and Cary Halligan to the team in July.  Our meetings are held on the 
3rd Tuesday of each month at 3:30 p.m. at Station 1, 5811 South Pacific Hwy.   
 
Please review our annual report and if you have any questions feel free to contact me. 
Darin Welburn, Fire Chief 

12



STATION INFORMATION 
 

Personnel Assigned per shift:        Station One/5811 S. Pacific Hwy., Phoenix, OR 

4 paid/2 students 

Apparatus/Unit Number: 

Engine  8301 

Engine  8311 

Tender  8341    

Grass/Brush  8361 

Utility/Support 8381 

Staff (3)  8351/8352/8353 

Vintage Engine 8383 

 

 

     Station Two/40 Neil Creek Rd., Ashland, OR 

 

Personnel Assigned per shift: 2 paid 
       Apparatus/Unit Number: 

       Engine  8302 

       Rescue  8332 

       Grass/Brush  8362 

 

 

 

 

 

Station Three/116 W. Second St., Phoenix, OR 

 

Personnel Assigned per shift:  

2 paid/2 students 
Apparatus/Unit Number: 

Engine  8303 

Engine  8313 

Tender  8343 

Grass/Brush  8363 

 

 

 

 

13



2015 STATISTICS 

 

           

   Incident Activity Types  Types of Fire Incidents 

 

Fire Calls ……………………. 209 Structure Fires ………………….. 35 

EMS Calls …………………. 1,328 Vegetation Fires …………….......  33  

Public Assist ……………… 348 Vehicle Fires ……………………. 17 

Vehicle Collisions……………. 164 Smoke Investigations ………….. 67    

Good Intent ………………….. 397  Illegal Burning ………………….. 50    

False Alarms ………………….. 43 Other Fires ……………………….  7    

Hazardous Conditions ………... 52    

Miscellaneous ………………… 5 Total Fire Incidents ………….. 209    

 

Total Incident Activity…… 2,546                  

    Incident Activity by Time of Day 

 

Incident Activity by Day of Week   Midnight – 4am .………………  215 

   4am – 8am ……………………. 223 

Mondays …………………….  344 8am – 12 noon ……………….. 500    

          Tuesdays …………………….    372 12 noon – 4pm ……………….. 578 

          Wednesdays …………………  325 4pm – 8pm …………………… 617 

Thursdays …………………… 371 8pm – Midnight ……………… 413    

Fridays ………………………..  382    

Saturdays …………………….. 379 

          Sundays ………………………  373         Incident Activity by Station 

 

  Station One ………………...... 1,195 

Personnel  Station Two …………………… 406 

  Station Three ………………….. 945 

Fire Chief …………….…….…..  1 

Deputy Chief ………..………..  1 

Captains ……..…………………  9                

Engineers …………..…………..  9                  

Firefighters ……..……………… 6 

Volunteer Firefighters ……..…..  20                            Alarm Activity By Station     

Students ……………………….. 12 

Administrative ………..………..  3   

    
       

 

 
0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Sta. 1 Sta. 2 Sta. 3

14



2015 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 

 

 

The Fire District budgeted for upgrades to our extrication equipment for the fiscal year. 

Our goal was to purchase a tool that is interchangeable with our neighboring fire 

departments, will more effectively cut the metals used in today’s auto construction, and has 

parts and service readily available in our region. Our current inventory was a mixture of 

tool types that had been purchased in past years. After looking at what our neighbors were 

using and what tools we had a good success with in the past we chose a Holmatro Tool. 

Our crews have all just completed training with the new tools and they are currently in 

service.  

 

 

 

   
  

 

 
             

15



2015 FIRE PREVENTION &  

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES 

 

OPEN HOUSE – OCTOBER 7th 

 
The District’s largest event of the year continues to be our Annual 

Open House held at Station One every October during Fire 

Prevention Week. In 2015 approximately 600 people dropped by to 

have a hot dog, look at the fire trucks and visit with their neighbors. 

There are always plenty of activities for the kids too, and our 

personnel look forward to welcoming our community each year. 

This year we also hosted an open house at the Emigrant Lake 

Station. About 30 people came by to meet their Firemen and take a 

look at the station and equipment.  

 

      OTHER ACTIVITIES IN 2015 INCLUDE: 

 

 Child Safety Seat Installations 

 Reflective Address Signs 

 CPR Classes 

 Loaned Flue Brushes 

 Checked Smoke Alarms 

 Property Access Inspections 

 Fire Safety Inspections 

 Station Tours 

 BBQ for Talent Middle School Fun Run 

 EMS Standby for PHS Sporting Events 

 Smokey Bear Fire Safety Presentations at Phoenix & 

Talent Elementary Schools 

 Fire Extinguisher Classes 

 Issued Open Burning Permits/Provided Burning 

Regulations 

 Cooked Burgers for FFA at PHS 

 Attended Breakfasts at Suncrest Place 

 Inspected Fireworks Stands 

 Filled Water Tanks for Emergency Use Throughout District 

 Phoenix Family Fun Fair 

 BBQ at Armadillo School 

 Ashland 4th of July Parade and Pearblossom  

 Talent Harvest Festival 

 Back to School BBQ at TES 

 PHS Homecoming Parade 

 Fire Safety Class at Willow Springs School 

 Home Depot Safety Day 

 Fundraising Breakfast at Bearlake Estates  

 

16



2015 Hot Topics: 
 

 
As we came into the summer of 2015 we were faced with extreme drought condition in the west.  As the summer 
progressed the wildfire predictions became reality.  Throughout the state resources were repeatedly organized to 
tackle large wildfires that were threatening multiple homes.  Resources from our region were mobilized to the 
Stouts fire to our north and the Canyon Creek blaze in northeastern Oregon.  Our crews provided structural 
protection and created defensible spaces around homes in the fires path.  Here in our Fire District residents paid 
attention to fire conditions and were extremely fire safe throughout fire season.  In our entire District we only 
burned approximately 2 acres during the fire season.  We would like to thank our customers for being so fire safe! 
 
We have made some changes to our website and would like to encourage residents to go to it and access the 
resources and information available.  You can obtain a burn permit at this site as well.  Some important links that 
we would like you to view are: 
www.jcfd5.com 
 
Jackson County Citizen Alert, where you can sign up for emergency alert information.  We encourage all residents 
to sign up so that you can get emergency information quickly! 
www.jacksoncounty.org/alert 
 
Be Ready, Be Set, Go!  Evacuation information; what you need to know before it’s time to go!  Three levels of 
evacuation.  In the event of an emergency in your area, you may be asked to evacuate.  It’s important you know 
what the different levels of evacuation are and what they mean for your family! 
EM@jacksoncounty.org  
 
Disaster registry:  Would your loved one or friend need special assistance in an emergency?  If so, you should sign 
up for the Disaster Registry! 
www.rvcog.org  or contact Rogue Valley Council of Governments at (541)-664-6674 
 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT):  Ashland Fire Rescue is teaming up with the City of Talent and 
Jackson County Fire District 5 to create a CERT base in the Talent area.  The City of Ashland has had a very 
successful CERT program for many years and we look forward to partnering with them as we develop the Talent 
Base.  In addition to our website you can contact Kittie Harrison directly at kittieh@jcfd5.com 
 
Map Your Neighborhood (MYN) is a 9-step response plan that begins with you and your home and then reaches 
throughout your neighborhood.  It teaches you what to do in the “Golden Hour” or the first hour following a 
disaster.  To coordinate a meeting in your neighborhood contact Kittie Harrison at kittieh@jcfd5.com  

 

 

 

 

Whatever changes a year brings, there is one thing that will never change… 

 

“We Still Make House Calls!” 

17

http://www.jcfd5.com/
http://www.jacksoncounty.org/alert
mailto:EM@jacksoncounty.org
http://www.rvcog.org/
mailto:kittieh@jcfd5.com
mailto:kittieh@jcfd5.com


18



19



T4T
Pollinators are working on an integrated pest management proposal.

reminder that the integrated pest management presentation is this Saturday, Mar. 5, 
10-11:30 at the Talent Public Library.

Plans are underway for a celebration in honor of National Pollinator Week on June 25.

Recycle drop off is May 7.

Enhancement of the trail along Wagner Creek near SOS building is this Saturday, Mar. 5, 19, 
and 26,10-2. This work will be happening at the same time as the riparian restoration work is 
being done along Wagner Creek in the Old Bridge neighborhood. 

Arbor Day celebration is April 9th, 10-12 at Little League Field. There will be tree planting, 
booths, music, refreshments, children’s activities, and tree seedlings for adoption.

Jackson Soil and Water Conservation District in conjunction with Rogue River and 
Watershed Council held an annual dinner Feb. 26th. I was able to attend. It was great to hear 
how closely these organizations and partnerships work with our community landowners in 
efforts in improve soil and water quality as well as water conservation. They provide landowners 
with education, technical assistance, site visits, development of management plans, and 
financial resources. Currently they are collecting agricultural pesticides and contaminated 
containers throughout Southern Oregon, residents registered their chemicals but were allowed 
to remain anonymous. They now have equipment rental available to help landowners. Oregon 
Department of Agriculture has provided a funding opportunity to landowners in the Wagner 
Creek Watershed, pretty much those the live along Wagner Creek from Talent to the forest 
boundary. This funding will aid landowners in improving water quality and salmon habitat. There 
is a meeting regarding this funding opportunity to the landowners along Wagner Creek, March 
10, 6:30-8pm at Talent Town Hall.

Together for Talent Drafting of Ordinance 
As environmental concerns are becoming more official, Together for Talent would like to solidify 
their efforts for Talent’s livability and environmental stewardship by becoming a recommending 
body to Council. Just today the state of Oregon is the first to pass legislation to eliminate coal 
generation from our state and double the use of renewable energy. This bill as well as other 
implemented goals set by our state will place Oregon as the cleanest energy state in the nation 
by 2040. Together for Talent has long been involved in our City’s livability and environmental 
stewardship through the use of a resolution. Together for Talent has agreed to take on the 
drafting of an ordinance to further cement the work they do for our City. We are asking today, 
not to appoint a committee, but to ask that the existing committee, that does so much in the way 
of livability and environmental stewardship, commence the drafting of an ordinance with 
permission from council. Together for Talent has been working with Rogue Climate Talent in 
efforts for a solar cooperative and a clean energy plan to be presented later this year. Before 
these efforts are presented to the City, Together for Talent would like to vet as a recommending 
body to Council. Together for Talent understands that the drafting of an ordinance takes some 
time and would like to move forward on this if council approves.

Madame Mayor I would like to make a motion to change Together for Talent from a resolution to 
an ordinance.

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                 

City Council Agenda Report 
Agenda Item- CIP Project Allocation for Tennis Courts 

Meeting Date: March 16, 2016 Primary Staff Contact: Denise Woodman  dfw 

Department: Finance/Administration E-Mail: denise@cityoftalent.org 

Staff Approval: Thomas J. Corrigan Secondary Contact:  

 
Issue before the Council: 

The Parks Commission has requested funding estimated at $23,450 for the resurfacing of the Chuck 

Roberts Park Tennis Courts.  The City Manager would like to move Parks Fund allocation within the 

Capital Improvement Fund as outlined below. 

  

– Reallocate $24,000 from Parks Land Acquisition to Tennis Court Resurfacing 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Staff recommends reallocating Park Land Acquisition funds to the Tennis Court Resurfacing within 

the Capital Improvement Fund for Chuck Roberts Park improvements. 

 

Background: 

Parks funding has been set aside over time for the purchase of additional park lands.  There is $45,156 

set aside in Park Land Acquisition after Council approved reallocation of $10,000 to the Splash Pad at 

the March 2, 2016 meeting.   

 

Council Options: 

Council may approve, deny or modify this request. 

 

Potential Motions: 

Consensus Approval 

 

Attachments:   

None 

49




